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PREFACE

The attached article was written by Carrie Donohew Meyers in
1955 when she was in her 80's. In order to assist the
reader in understanding the contents her, Carrie Donohew
Meyers, relationship to the Barbers is set forth below. She
constantly used the terms; my mother, father, grandmother;
grandfather, great grandmother, and great grandfather
instead of names.

Landers Barber George Reid
wife unknown Margaret Alkire
Thomas Barber Margaret Reid

Catherine Barber (grandmother)
Marr. Samuel Ulery (grandfather)

Delilah Ulery
Marr. a Donohew

Carrie Donohew Meyers

This document was retvped in July 1991 by Ssuellvn Phillips,
wife of Harold L. Phillips. There were no editorial and
very few punctuation or spelling changes made to the
original document to prevent losing the style and flavor of
it. All of the relatives mentioned can be found on the
Family Group Sheets and the index compiled by H.L. Phillips.
The Group Sheets have been updated from information
contained in various Ky.,other states and National records.
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«'.’_ "THE BARBERS"

»-By Carrie Donohew Meyers
(Great Granddaughter of Thomas & .Margaret Reid Barber)
. (December 1955)

carrie Donohew Meyers was 81 years old at the time this was ’
written in 1955.

My grandmother Catherine Barber Ulery was not quite sure but she
believed her grandfather's name as Lander's Barber. She did not
remember her grandmother Barber at all not even her name, for she
has passed away before her time, for grandmaw was among the
younger children of that big family of a dozen children, really
13 but one little girl, Margaret died in childhood. She
remembered the little old granfather who would ride in on his
saddle horse two or three times a year and spend a few weeks with
their family, he evidently made his home with some of his
daughters for he had several. He lived to be very old, about 90
or more. His children were: ~

Thomas Barber
John Barber

Polly Whittington
Betsey Butler
Nancy Marshall
Charity Thomas
Fannie Parke
Katie Foley

Thomas Barber married Miss Margaret Reid of Bourbon County.
Their children werel:

Melissa Jackson
Jesse Barber
Nancy Jackson
George Barber
Dan Barber
Fliza Jones
John Barber
Anerica Clery
Thomas Barber
Catherine Clery
Caroline Adams
Mary Warren
Margaret (died as a child)

John Barber, brother of Thomas Barber Sr., married Maude Re:c of
Bourbon Co., sister of Margaret Reid Barber, so you &2 the TWO
‘Barber bothers married sisters soO that is what starte< th:is !ine

of double cousins.
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Jchn and Maude's'children were Capt. George Reid Barber;, Cnion
soldier in the Civil War.

Lieut. Landers Barber also was in the Civil War, a soldier on the
Union side, of course.

James Barber, who served on Confederate side, and Mrs. Staton
always said he was disowned and left home, never returned after
the war ended. If he survived he evidently nade his home
elsewhere. The family never knew anything about him again.

pclly who married a Mr. Naylor, then after his death Goodpaster,
who did not live too long. She was widow for many vYears. She
lived to a good old age. she was known among the kinsfolk as
"aunt Pop."

Rettie Barber and Kittie Barber married brothers Billy and Abe
Denton. Bettie and Abe were the parents of Jane Jackson. She 1s
the only one that I ever knew of their children.

Kitty ané Billy Denton had a daughter, Mary. who married Tclliver
Mcore, a brother of Marion Moore. Mary Denton, of course, was an
own cousin to Lou Moore, soO when they married brothers that made
+reir children very close kin.

Dr. George Moore and Etna anderson looked more alike than any man
and woman I nearly ever saw, for thev were such close kin fclks.

capt. George R. Barber's wife was gallie Johnscn, whe was a widow
atchison with one chi1ld when she narried Barber and that child
was "Jeannette” known as "aunt Net", a peculiar half deaf cld
rnaid who almost raised her half brothers and sisters, who were:

Lewis Barber ’

George W. (who was alwavs called Didens, but I dgn't
know why)

Ananda Storey

Lou Mocre

Landers Barber

Bubby (I do not know what his nane was.)

L4
Cerd emver ] Vears it

THls young Landers Barber narried mv Aunt Minerva Clerv and they
were —he parents »f Hays Barhker., She died when he was ~nlv & few
dave wlad. rapdere took him to Capc. Barber's hcne ani Jeznn»toe
rz-eed hin. Landers lived until the boy was nearly grown &nd
<i-ed, never was good far rie- h oof anything. Grandma Ulery neva!
grzeved for her. She thought Minerva escaped & hard life. She
Sirterly chjected to thelr marriage hecause he was worthliess and
slso because of their close kinship.

rewls Barber married three times. He ig the father =L Espy,
Trnest, and Ear., alse of Enie Rir= and Jeannie Morzon 3LaTon wi o
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G. W. known as "Didens” married sarah Davis and is the father of
vViola Staton and hér-sisters and brothers. I know nothing about
"Bubby's" family.

Amanda Storey's family grew up over in Flening Co. She has been
dead for years. Dear. old .cousin Lou Moore lived to be 98 years
old. You know all about her and her children, Etna, "Collie" or
Colfax, Rcbert of Texas, only one living now. Then the twins
Mollie and Tina, dead long ago.

The Captain's brother, Landers, Civil War soldier, married,
first, Rhoda Clenons, a beautiful woman, high-tempered, insanely
jealous of him. I guess she had good reasons to be. After a
bitter gquarrel one night, she went and hanged herself from a tree
in the vard. He did not know it until the next morning, but
thought she had gone to some of the neighbors. She had two or
three children. Among then the beautiful Mary Barber abcut the
age of cousin Lou Moore. These two cousins boarded with gradna
Ulery cne winter at wyoming (KY), and went to schocl tc Grandpa
Ulery who taught school there. The last ime I saw cousin Lou she
was telling me about 1it. Landers Barber had remarried lona
before this. He married Bonaker's wife, who was never ruffled at
anything. She was a sister of Mrs. Lizzie Estill and alsc tc the
nother of Elen Byron. They lived up on White Oak not far from
wWyoming.

when Landers started for the Army, he rode up to grandnma Clery's
door and told her he was then leaving. His son John was already
in the ranks and he was rather leaving Mary 1n Grandnma's care.

He said his wife Angeline, with some small children, had tc ke at
home nost of the time, Mary would be lonely, and he wanted her,
whenever she felt she could nct stay at home any lenger, Jjust to
cone down there and stay a week or two. Of course Grandras was
glad tc have her. Mary would ride down with a sack of ccrn f2r
her horse. After she had fed it all out to the horse, she would
go hcme and perhaps stay a week or two and then here she would
come with more horse feed and make another visit. Mama would go
home with her scrmetimes and stay a few davs. She was RIS
younger but she like to visit them and espcially liked Aunt
Ange:ine, she thcught she was good. One day while plaving

o
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hcuse, chasing each other, somneone rlundered against the anr
“gr -n the corner on the hearth, it fell and spilled the
~ont=r~-s, which ran back under & bed in a corner. Aunt Anasline
calm.v renoved hsr pipe, b8 lept her seat, tcld the choilidrer o
call »n the doge, let ther eat what thev wanted, and she wouid
then get uir and zlean up the rest, My nather thought she was
grans Zor it. If that had happened at her home, thinge woulc
have heen popping, but 1t took nore than an overturned orzar ~al
to drsturb 3Angel:ine. I do not know how well Mary liked her stepr-
mother, but my mother thought Aunt aAngeline was tops.

wher Rhoda Clemernzs Barber went sur o hang herself, 3he T20R
seme-hing fren that old press oF Lotk Ieccle had vefinisnea 0t
whee!, 2 Aow iqn onEr Ining roone 47 Jrne T heoa tT Shemlze
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or slip as they nhow call them which she cut or tore into strips.
she knotted it together tying one end around her neck she climbed
an apple tree, secured the other end to a limb, stepped off and
there she was the next mcrning. The dogs had barked all night,
disturbed, of course, by her body dangling there; yet it never
dawned on Landers Barber that his wife could do such a thing. He
thought in a fit of rage she had gone to some neighbor's for the
night and what she 'took from the drawer was a gown. Now her
children, which were little were Mary and John. It seens to ne
there were three, but I am not sure, but after they were grown, -
they are the only ones I ever heard anything about. But Angeline
had several, one was named Martin for old Martin Hcnakerr.

The war finally ended and Landers Barber came back to his fanily.
Mary was now grown, very beautiful and popular, and became
engaged to a nice young man, Jesse Kring, a brother to the mother
of Mrs. Etta Jackson, who was Caroline Kring. The wedding took
place in nidwinter. Grandma Ulery went up to help Angeline
prepare for it a day or twe before. Grandpa, my mother, about 12
vears old, and their other children, all smaller, walked up from
Wyoming the day of the wedding, which was cold anéd freezing.

Been raining a day or two and now turning cold fast. It had been
several weeks since the wedding day had been set and not a werd
had passed between the couple in that time., no telephone, no
nail, hardly ever, and Mary was uncertain whether he wculd get
there or not. The rcads were awful, but the dinner was ready and
guests already there. Mary was in her room with a bad headache,
was her excuse, but finally some One saw the bridal party comning,
twe men and two wemen on horseback rcde up to the pcrch, but
could hardly get off their horses. Their long riding skirts
frozen stiff, they had gone through lots of water which had thenm
frozen, but with help, they got in where it was warnm. Mary
quickly came to l:ife when they arrived, dashed akout and soon
finished dressing. Now the bridal party was, of course, Jesse
kring, his sister, Caroline Kring, who afterwards married a Mr.
pates, and Miss Cynthia Lewis, who late in life became the second
wife of HYart, brother cf Sid Hart and the best man whecever
he night have been. Dinner, wedding, and all went off beautiful.
The next dav they left for up in Rowan County, somewhere tc nake
their home. Well, here is the sad part, in just a vear. Maryv hac
she came near dying. The doctor said 1if

4, she ccid never stand it. So in about & vear and half,
ened again, and Mary died. Landers had lost his beloved

r - ie burried in 0ld Va. cenetary.

a1

v n

ew vears Jesse Rring marr-oed avain and went out &
had several more children and only about five ve
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agc the Outicok puklished the death of this oldest daughter of
Jesse Kring and Mary Barber Lkring and stated she was born in
Rowar Co., KY. She then was an old lady way up 1in the 8C's.
1
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Alse her own brother, a Dr.. I believe it said, was stx11

- -1

he toco having been born in Rowan O, kY. She was alst surviv
by several haif sisters and nrothers. Probably this newe mean
veryv 1ittoie tooosrme e L : te me 3t meant hearin res reat
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old grandmotherfr%late all the trials and troubles of her
favorite double cousin, Landers Barber.

Soon after Mary's death he decided to move to Kansas, whether she
bought the old "hutch" then or whether there mnight have been a
break up when Rhoda left then and he sold out then I do not
really know. I never saw Landers B., but once, that was when he
was very old and had come back here to die, and he told me that
hinself. His wife Angeline, had been dead several years, burried
out there, but he said as he neared death his heart and mind
turned back to old KY and the old burying ground of his peopie,
sc he journeyed back acconmpanied by his youngest son, Charlie, a
big heavy-faced Honaker, looked no more like his father than 1if
he was a total stranger. They cane by train, landed in Preston.
Jin Anderson and Etna were living there and Jim was building our
peeled and Preston Pike. They had spent the night there and were
just ready to start for Forge Hill when I stepped in and Etna
introduced me to Uncle Landers and Charlie Barber. Well {ncle
randers was about the best looking man I ever saw despite hiz 80
cdd years. Tall, I guess 6 ft, straight as an arrow, white ha:rr,
bright black eyes, and the very bearing of a suvldier, not an
cunce of surplus flesh on hinm and I imagine never had been. 5.
was going to his sister's who lived at Forge Hill Aunt Pop to
tay there a few months, he knew it would not be long.

Capt. George Barber was then still living also his sons and
cousin Lou Moore were right there sc nc trouble for scmecne to
see after Uncle Landers. All were anxious to do it. In abourt
twe or three months he died. Charlie, I think, staved with his
father and amongst the Honakers most all the time. 1 hardly
pelieve he ever did g¢ hone. He was not married and coulid very
well stay.

They burried Landers anong his people in 0Old Virginia cenetery in
honors of war. He was put away befitting & gallant scldier. His
farher and mother lie there I guess.

Mama alwayvs said Aunt Maudy was the first dead person she evs=r
caw. She was tiny girl then and thought Aunt Maude was & Latv--
having on a lace cap gave her +hat impression. Aurnt Maudy, &%
thev called her, was not <2 old as her sister, Margaret Bgroer
lived tc be nor did she have sc¢ many children. She was a Zear
aunt =f grandma Clery. her mother's own sistey while Tncle J: 0
Barher was her father's Lyother (Themas Barber . Ne wonaer T
all fzlt sc near to each cther and no distincilon ruch nade
between these double ceusine and their brothers and z.sters.

6'4 Tn-wle Landers hacd a daughter Kate arsng hig younger v,
ste must have been named for Grandma Ulery. She cften -
couszn Lou Mocre. The last time I ever saw her she told —= ¥i%
rad a letter a few davs befuore frone Kate. Shes. I auess, 18 =70
1iving though T ode not know her marvied nane nor wi2re Sae JRAT-L N
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began passing. lgbe'had thrown open the door of the stable, the
mare was securely behind pole’'s of the stall. One soldier on a
lame horse leaned down and looked in calling out to his buddies,
"nothing in here but an old sore back and we have enough of
them," and they passed on. .

Next morning by sunrise Sallie Ann seated on her horse had said,
"Good-bye", to Wyoming and was soon speeding on her way to West
Liberty. Well pleased at her trick by which she had saved her
caddle horse. Nobody but a Barber could have thought of that at.
a nonents notice! .

J. C. Barber, son of Tom, was called Jesse. When I visited at
sandy Hooke, he was about five years old. I guess his name was
Jesse Clay for Tom's father and brother. Tom's wife was Alice
DeHarte, sister to the man Fannie married. A lovely woman, a
fine dress maker, she made the living for her family. 1 liked
her very much.

Dear little Aunt Melissa, I can see her vet, for I knew her very
well. I used to go with Grandma Ulery to spend the day very
often for she and Uncle George lived on a little farm just this
side of Preston. Their children were all gone when I knew then.
She always had flowers and books and papers of all kinds and
guineas which were quite a curiosity to me, though there was no
one to play with me, I got along fine. She had two settees, I
belive, that's what she called them. One was in her best  roon,
the other on the back porch. I would spend nuch timne in the one
on the porch. They were, I would guess, nearly as long as a bed,
entirely of wood and with big sturdy rockers. You could rock all
you wanted. There was nc danger of turning over. They are the
only ones I ever saw and I wonder what became of then. They
weuld certainly be antiques now.

aunt Melissa was a fine Christian. I think her daughter Nannie
nust have been much like her for she raised some fine sons anong
then the preacher Cleveland Carpenter. During the Civil War a
company of infantry marching along the public rcad when a sick
soldier was unable to proceed further stepping out of line. He
made his way to their hcuse and fell, fainting at the very
doorstep. Aunt Melissa knew at a glance that he was a Rebel
scldier, but they helped hin in, placed him in the best bed on
the place, and sent for Dr. Walker, who lived about three niles
away. She nursed hinm the very best she could. The Dr. gave him
all the attention he needed and in about three weeks their )
celdier left to join his company. some of her neighbors
~riticized her for "harboring a Rebel,” but she said, "right now
I have two dear boys fighting in the ranks of the Unicn Army
somewhere in the South, and I hope if they should be sick or 1in
need of help, some Southern nother would not hesitate to befriend
thers because of the side they are on." I guess the little farm
they lived on was a part of the Jackscn land inherited from the
father as Thomas Jackson, who married Nancy Barber, sister o
Aunt Meliesa lived on another lattle farr which feined DT,

"
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These two Jackson brothers, Thomas and George called "Tyke"”,
married Melissa and Nancy Barber. Aunt Melissa and George's
children were the two soldiers Tom and Henry and William, Cole
and Sam, three girls, Nancy or Nannie as they called her, who
married Newton Carpenter, Eliza who also married a Carpenter, but
separated from him and raised a family of eight children alone,
doing molre work than you could think possible for any woman.
Margaret married Andy Fortune, put died pretty young leaving an
afflicted girl that Aunt Melissa kept sc long as lived and was
able. There may have been another child or two. but they grew up
anong the Fortune's.

Tom Jackson caneé out of the arny disabled and sick. He lived
only a few months, and was burried over here in a grave yard on
John Reid's farm. when his widow received a big pension, she
moved his body tc the Owingsville cemetery and erected as tall a
nonunent as there is in it. "

Henry came out, health gone also, but he lingered along for
years, could not die and harly lived, drew a big pension all the
years and finally I guess got in better health. Anyway, he lived
until he was mnore than 90, I believe 93. He died at Frenchburg
at the home of his son just a few Yyears ago. His wife, Maggie,
was a sister of Jane Jackson. She was Mag pDenton. She and Henry
were the parents of Clemnie Alfrey, charlie Jackson and ancther
g>n or two.

willian Jackson married Betty Hart and spent his entire married
1ife on a little farm near Olympia, but was a manager and
contractor here at the mines which were in full blast out there
for vyears. The sons of his sister Eliza Carpenter were furnished
work at the mines by him to aid her in making a living. They
went to work out there for tncle will as soon as they were old
enough. She owned and lived where Ray Carpenter now OwWnsS .

ccle Jackson, I pelieve, married a Miss Hubbard and l1ived quite a
while over in the Antioch, neighborhocd, finally moving to
olvmpia. His daughter Xellie married a Mr. Fitch, a reilrcad
man. Letha was the wife cf Joe williaps. John Le who lives at
olympia now is a son.

w211 Jackson and Betty's children were: San. 1da, Jchn, and
George and perhaps another boy. Jchn narried Scyha Maize who ,
iust retired fron school teaching about four years ago. william -
Jackson served as esgquire twc or three terms.

He was fine Christian man and devoted to his parents who lived to
be very old. He and Betty were great church pecple. Sam
Jackson, son of tncle George and Aunt Melissa. narried young and
died scon after leaving a wife and baby boy only a few mcnths
old. This girl was an Ingranm and. I believe, her son was the
enterprising npafe Jacksen,"” head of the Tpndianapalls, Ind., big
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store which finél@y_bécame several stores and where the Ingrams
and Oakleys went and.did so well. Mrs. Oakley was an Ingram.

Thomas Jackson and Nancy Barber Jackson had a big family indeed.
Jesse, the eldest, named for her beloved brother Jessee Barber.
John and George, now these three were married and had families,
so did not enlist as ‘soldiers in the Civil War, but Wallace and
Lindsey did right at the start. The next to go in was Press,

. then Jim, after he left Aunt Nancy went to bed, four of her boys
gone. She was in poor health anyway and just gave up. Grandma
said that finished Nancy, she never sat up. Much after that it
was a little too much for her though they all came out safe and
sound, but she passed away before they did. The remainder of the
children were Jeff, Margaret, Elizabeth and Caroline, who was
called "Keete." Lewis died when a small boy. So that was 12
children, nine boys and three girls. :

John Jackson married Jane Denton, daughter of Bettie Barber
Denton and Abe Denton sc¢c John Jackson's mother and Jane's mother
were double cousins. They are the parents of Em Barnes Price and
Jess Jackson and etc.

George Jackson married twice. The Hart sisters Nancy and Sarah,
had 13 children. Sid Warren's widow Peach is one among the first
flock. Prudy Warner, mother of Minie Smoot and Mary Pendleton
was one of the children of the second wife. Sarah could name
them all,but it is not necessary. Stone Jackson of Bath and Burl
of Mt. Sterling are sons. Jesse Jackson first married Lucretia
Sorrell who left four children, then he married Martha Ann
Alexander, the mother of Mrs. Jessie Johnson, he died suddernly
before she was born. Caroline Jackson who was always called
"Keete” married Jimmie Denton, krother of Jane Jackson. They
went to Kansas where he became a wealthy man. Press Jackson
married Mary Shouse of Salt Lick, had two scns. After her death
he married Etta Bates who is still living and drawing a big Civil
War pension. She has one scn. She makes her home with hin.
After the end of the Civil War, Wallace and Lindsey Jackson went
out West, married, and raised their families out there. I saw
Lindsey once on a visit here.

Anerica Barber married Joe Ulery, an own uncle of my grandfather
Sanuel Clery. Joe with an old maid sister, Betsey, owned a nice
farr of a hundred acres or two right down the hill from the town
house of Charlie Myer's on West Main St. in Owingsville. Charl:e
bought that farm a few years agc. It runs up te the street sc
his town house is built right on the edge of it. The old Ulery
home is still standing and looks much like it always did lcng and
low but Charlie took down one of its big chimneys and put a flue
instead. It is used as a tenant house. I hardly think he got
all the farm for Dick Tapp, father of Dawson, got a big slice
when some of the Ulery heirs sold out and Myers may not have goct

it.
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tncle Joe and Aunt Anmerica had six children, two boys John and
Thomas and four daughters, Amanda, who married Will Baird; Mary.
who married Johnson Hamilton, own uncle of Mrs. Witen Horton;
Eliza, who married Louis Tylor; and Lizzie, who married Jesse
Ccassidy, they were the parents of Etna, six boys in a row and
then the baby girl Fannie, who was just seven years old when
cousin Lizzie died suddenly of pneumonia, leaving that family for
Etna to carry on with. .

Uncle Joe died before Lizzie married and Aunt America died that ’
very night, just after the wedding. She had not been well for a
long time and the excitement of Lizzie getting married and
leaving brought on a heart attack and she only lived a few
minutes. Someone raced after them and overtook them before they
reached Cassidy's on Stepstone. Aunt America had remarried sone
years before this, a Mr. Goodpaster, brother to old Levi
Goodpaster, father of Banks, Morgan, Espy and etc. The other
three Ulery girls and husbands all went to Kansas. I never knew
anything about them, they lived and died out there.

John and Tom both went in the Army at a pretty early age. They
were furious over the second nmarriage of their mother and they
hated Goodpaster, and these boys plunged ino the Arny mostly just
to get away from home, for John as much as told Grandma Ulery sc.

one Sunday morning John Jackson, out in his vard on the road side
down here at his home when scldiers began passing Cnion Calvary.
going out the old Mud Lick road. This old rocky road that runs
along our "Ficklin Place” and passes and what has been lately
called "Roxie Traylors”™ home Jane Jackson, John's wife was busy
dressing some chickens out beside the back porch one of these
passing soldiers called to her and said, "have then fried by the
time we get back. We may eat dinner with vou." They did not
recognize the boy who called, but later they knew it had to be
Tom Clery. A little while later some riderless hcrses camne up
the road. John, running out, siezed the bridles of some half a
dozen and threw them over the fence pcsts, just at that time
dozens of soldiers came rushing by shouting to hin to turn the
horses loose which he did in a hurry and they ran on with the
rest. This scouting party of Union soldiers had run into a
regular nest of Rebels at Mud Lick Springs whe pursurec them
hotly and shot down plenty of them both at the Springs and all
along the way to Mt. Sterling. Tom Ulery was shot frem his horse
at the top of Anerson Hill in front of the place where Cassidy’s
live. The old road ran close tc the hcuse on the ridge. He
panaged to crawl across the yard and into the house. Xo one was
there. The one whe lived there was the Army, his wife and baby
at a neighbors. She came home right at night, and, of course,
was frightened and surprised, but women then were I guess
prepared for nost anything. He was lying on the floor bleeding
profusely but conscious, and assured her he was harmless and

padly wounded. She, of course, called her neighbkors and they
nade him as confortable as possible.  Theve were no telephonss
than, no wav to ogend news, Lt in sone wav they ot oan inkling of
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battle down at his.home and that Tom has been wounded.

Goodpaster and Aunt -America got on their horses, next morning,
and rode up to John Jackson's. They felt sure being right on the
road they would know, but Jackson's had heard nothing of Tom
being hurt, but he and Jane got on their horses and rode with
them up there. No trouble to find the place. Neighbors were
excited and flocking in. Tom knew his mother, but lived only
about an hour after they arrived.

After the close of the war John, who cane thru it all right, went
to Kansas. He never married, but lived to an old age. I guess
his sisters must have rather followed him out there. He left
some property. I asked Fanny about it once. He has not been
dead so long. She said what he left had to be divided among soO
many it did not amount to much. Aunt America was always, I
think, rather delicate and Grandma always said Betsey Ulery was
just as good as that much "Nigger” and did all the hard rough
work there. I don't know exactly when "Aunt Bets", as they call
called her, died, but T believe she was living when Uncle Joe
died probably died soon after for I know she was gone while Aunt
America was living with Goodpaster. .

John Barber and old great grandfather really locked horns when
John concluded to marry and the marriage was forbidden in no
uncertain terms. John was mad and sulked around for months, but
his father never changed his mind. He did not like the girl and
in after vears John found out his father was right but he was
young, hot headed and in love, so they sneaked away.and got
married without his consent. They did not dare to go home when
they returned but instead went to Aunt America's and Uncle Joe's.
They stayed several weeks. John felt his father would relent and
send for them to come home. So one day Dan, a younger brother,
rode up leading a horse with a side saddle on it. He came in and
when he saw how elated and beaming both John and the girl were,
he hated to tell them he was after them, so instead he loocked

round at Aunt Betsey sitting with her knitting and said. "3Aunt
Bets, the girls want you to cone down and see if you can do
anything with the clocth they have in the lccm. They have ot it
in a devil of a tangle and thought you maybe could straighten it
cut." Well, he said that he never did see folks change their
expression any dquicker. He actually felt sorry for them, but
when 3Aunt Bets said she guessed she could and got up tc get
ready, he had to tell them he had come after them. Se Mahalah,
that was her name, got on the horse with the side saddle, Jchn on
the other, and Dan slipped on behind him and homeward bound.
Aunt Bets, I guess, went on with her knitting, probably glad she
did not have to make the trip and get into a disagreeable task as
a thank you job, but they all loved Aunt Bets.

Aun*t America was very sarcastic woman. I have heard cousin
Lizzie was too, and Fannie has inherited sonme also. Jchn Barber
had an unhappy time the years he lived with Mahalah. They had
cne child, Jin, and when he was about 1%, John Barber died. His
home was the house where Mrs. Dotson now lives, bought by the

'y



late Dr. Dotson,‘a few years ago, formrly owned by the Richies
and later by Mrs. Annie Richards and son. Probably John Barber
lived there all his married life which was not many years for he
died there. BHis death was very sudden, took a pain in his hip,
doctors did everying they possible could but he after intense
suffering for 24 hours or more died. Must have been
appendicitis, gall stones, or something surely a pain in his hip
would not have proved fatal. Now he would have been rushed to a
hospital and probably his life saved. He was burried in
Owingsville cemetery and for years and years no one was ever put
in that lot. He rested all alone until just a few years ago when
Omar Barber died. He was a bachelor and had no family. His
sisters and brothers concluded to bury him in Uncle John's lot
and I believe since that Sam Barber was put there also. The
dashing Mahalah soon married again, Ki Butcher or Hezekiah, the
real name and went to Maysville to live, but this 15 year old son
Jim stayed with the Barbers. His grandfather and mother lived
down at Wyoning also several uncles and aunts so he looked nc
further for some place to stay until he was old enough to get
married, then he and Sallie Ann Barber, daughter of Uncle Jess,
got married. That place Paragon their home on Licking, Yyears
hefore had been called Bangor. A lumber company from-Bangor,
Maine, had first established and operated . it and gave it that
name. Jim and Sallie Ann used to make trips now and then to
Maysville to see his mother. She lived to be pretty old.
Mahalah nust have been very fascinating. I heard my father-in-
law say once he would rather dance with Mahalah Barber than
anvone he ever knew for she was the best dancer and about the
best looking woman he ever saw. Jane Jackson made her home with
John "and Mahalah a vear or two. Her mother Bettie Barber Denton
died when she, Jane, was about 14 or 15 years old. John and
Mahalah were there and persuaded her to come home with them and
stay for awhile. Her father Abe Denton gave his consent for she
was thin, pale and far from well. Mahalah and John gave her the
best of care. XNothing much to do doctors gave her a treatment
and after a few months she began to blossom out intoc a plunp
little girl with roses in her cheeks and by the time she was
little past 16, she married John Jackson. His mother was Yency
Barber Jackson, double cousin to Bettie Barber Denton, Jane's
mather. John Barber was, of course, a brother to XNancy Barber
Jackson and I suppose John Jackson was named for him for those
Barber women never went out «f the family for names. 0ld great
grandrmother Parber had a Jess, Dan, John and George all for her
father and brothers, and I think nearly all her daughters did the
sarme thing for they named for each other, every daughter I think
had a Margaret named for their mother, and so many had the same
name it is hard to sort them out. Dear old great grandmother she
suffered a lot of worry and uneasiness during the war. She had
so many in it. Grandma Clery lived in Wyoming and the 0ld Barber
home stocod on a high bluff on the Fleming side of the river
overlooking the town and grandma said she could see'her mother
walking in the yard, white hair and cap ruffle hlowing back from
her forehea:, anxiously looking and waiting for news and anyone
whe care her wav was hardly greeted bLefore the smestions. Have



you heard anytiné.ffom the "Front"? Do you know where any of the
Jackson boys are' now or the Ulery boys or George' and Landers
Barber? Grandma.Ulery said she had 14 close relatives in the
Cnion Army no wonder she asked guestions concerning then. Yet
all but two lived to get home. Tom Ulery shot down near Howards
Mill while in retreat-from Mud Lick Springs and Andy Barber,
eldest son of Uncle Jess of West Liberty, who accidently fell-
from the deck of a steamboat and drowned in the Gulf of Mexico
while troops were being moved to Texas. In speaking of the’
children of Jess and Nancy Barber I forgot to mention him for he.
had been gone so long from that family he was hardly ever thought
of as ever belonging to themn.

Great grandmother had only one son in the Army and that was Tom
Barber. He was not so young. His first wife Dolly Ferguson had
been dead several years. He was married again to Helen Achison
and the third child, Ellie, was born while he was in service.
Grandma Ulery dressed this new baby, Mary and Jess, the other two
standing by watching the movements when it was finished Mary gave
a startled gasp and exclaimed, "It's a baby.". She prebably had
hardly realized what it was until then for babies then were
dressed complete from the start, but now the way they fix them up
it might have been sometime before she found out what it was.

She said it was as pretty as one as she ever loocked at.

Tor Barber operated the ferry there at Wyoning for yeaars and
after his death his boys Sam and Jess ran it for vears. When I
was about 17 vears old, nv grandnmother and I nmade a visit down
there staving a week. nele Ton was then dead but his family
were all there. Mary, Jess, and Sam married but Ellie, Charlie,
omar and Ina are still «t hone. aunt Helen and Grandma and I
spent one day across the river at the old Barber Home. Johnnie
Barber, son of Uncle Ton's first wife, lived there. His wife, I
don't think, was too pleased at our visit but what did we care.
We did not come tc see her but that old home where Aunt Helen and
my grandma cried most of the time while explored things, old loor
where the Barber girls wove cloth and carpets, old furniture
which belonged to great grand parents, 5ld house which sheltered
‘then in the Civil War days., cld upstairs room where Grandna and
Uncle Dan waited on their brother Jesse Barber in his brief
illness. Oh they had aloct of sad memories. It was a fine day 1in
May, I stood in the vard and looked down on the river and town.
Mer; in a house boat driving down logs and ties, stopping to get &
supply of groceries, looking over town and dragging out any
rai.road ties where folks had dragged them up for stove woocd.
They brought out one big saw log with their cant hooks and set iz
adrift. Finally the river was clear and they were gone. We had
a good dinner, a big fat hen and dumplings. Johnnie came in from
work at dinner, he was very friendly to his stepmother and Aunt
"kit." Aafter awhile Charlie came over in his skiff and rowed us
cver into town again. That the only tine I ever saw Johnnie, &
t+all slender man and his wife stooiky and with more hair on her
fi~e than he. They had a 13 vear old daughter but she was net
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Johnnie is still :living, visited at Salt Lick a short time ago.
First visit paper said in 13 years. He is out West. Must live
with this daughter and he must really be getting old. ‘He was
born in the old Barber home. Tom was the last one left there and
when he married he brought his wife to make her home with his
parents. They were old-and could stay alone no longer and when
Dolly died and left this baby son, the doting father and
grandparents spoiled him until he was a case. He was the chap
who fanned them all out and flatly refushed to start to school.
At last old grandfather's patience being about gone concluded he
would take him. So one morning he took Johnnie for a ride
stopping at the school hcuse. Miss Nannie Williams the teacher
came out all smiles and nice words, tried to entice Johnnie in,
but no he would not budge, so she reached up and with Grand
Papa's help though he stoutly resisted. They together finally
dislodged him and she carried him kicking and screaming intc
school, jerking from her arms he ran to the window yelling, "Oh
Miss Nannie please let me have one more peep at Grandpap.” It
took the whole school to calm him down. My nother was a pupil
there and thought Johnny's behaviour was horrible. When Ton
Barber married the second time he took his bride there to live
with his parents and they never left until after their death and
then they moved over in Wyonming, but I think Johnny must have
been about ready to take over when they left. It may have Leen
rented out a few years but not long for I believe when we were
there I understood Johnny had lived there ever since he had bheen
married. Aall the furniture and everything was just as the
grandparents, and Uncle Tom's parents had left.

Yow we will turn to Mary Barber Warren, the wife of William
Warren. She may have been the youngest one this big Barber
fanily, I am not sure whether she or Caroline Adan's hut one of
ther. Grandma CUlery said the five younger ones always seened
just like another little family. They ate at the second table,
slept in trundle beds, roamed and played tcgether and nothing
much was expected of then. They were my grandmother Catherine,
Torm, George, Caroline and Mary. This girl Mary did surprise the
whole flock by getting married at 16. She was a tiny wonan,
never hardly weighed a hundred lbs. in her life and rather plain
looking but she certainly was a worker and I wonder just how nuch
the "The Homemakers" could tell or show her how to conduct her
household affairs today. Her home was a workshop and she was an
efficient manager. Cleanliness was the motto at all times. XNc
dirt could possibly hide from her. Their little farm of €5 acres
by the roadside on highway 60 now produced their living. App:es
were canned, dried, or stored for winter, all kinds of
vegetables, cabbage, potatoes, turnips, beets and beans were put
by. Hogs were killed, soap was nade, sorghun nolasses and
punpkins, kershaws, etc. Living on the rcadside they were nuch
annoyed by soldiers stopping. One day while Uncle Bill was
plowing a few straggling soldiers stopped and tock his horse
right frorm the plow, then one reached down from his horse and
spatohed the hat from his head which was & pretty good one aml ¢
threw an old worn armny sap to Tnol- 2iil. Sull chinge wer= hard
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to put up with but what could you do. One cold and blustering
night in the very first days of March when everything was frozen
hard a thousand calvary of Cluke's Army rode into Uncle Bill's
place tc make camp for the night. He saw them in time to slip
out, unobserved and make his "get away"; otherwise, they might
have captured him: An officer came to the door and asked Aunt
Mary if she wanted to stay there. If so he would place a guard
around the house; or, if she wished to leave and take her .
children to some neighbors, he would send an escort with her thru
the lines. She was glad to leave, she said she had no procf that
they might not be attacked before morning and she did not want to
be caught in the middle of a battle. The fences con the farm made
of wooden rails which the soldiers pulled and ricked together in
long rows setting them on fire to warm their men. Blazing
brightly they soon lit up the whole country and made plenty of
heat, two or three fine big hay stacks were guickly scattered cut
to the horses, also a fine big stack of oats, a crib pretty well
filled with corn was alsc sheoveled out where the horses tranped
over it eating some and destroying much of it, their neat fron
eight hogs, except what they had used since they killed in
beginning of winter, was carried out of the meat house, hacked
and cut up most of it cooked and eaten of ccurse but plenty of it
wasted, almost a full barrel of molasses was dribbled around and
used up. Just at daylight they moved out and the family returned
but what a scene of destruction met their gaze, a pretty dismal
prospect on a poor farmer and his wife with eight children. They
ad ne boys old enough to hbe in the service. Ton, the eldest,
cculd not have been more than 14, next was Miranda about nv
mother's age, then John, Ann, Rate, Mollie, George, Carcline,
Jess, Lida, Charlie, and Emma, two more children Elizabeth and
Tsaac died while small, so little Aunt Mary raised a dozen
children, 5 sons and 7 daughters and how she cculd be sc
particular and pains takingy with everything I zould never figure
out. You see we knew a let about her. My mother being about the
sane age as the older children did a lot of visiting there in her
veunger days. Then when the younger ones came on Lida, Charlie
and Frma, I would make many visits out there so together we knew
Aunt Marv's wavs pretty well. My mother living then at Wyoning
would come late in fall to visit them and on the backside of the
farm they had some fine hickory trees and she would gather a big
sack of hickory nuts and take home with her and vou may be sure
while they lasted she was the mest popular little girl in that
town. Aunt Mary had a special little roon for her loon and did a
lot of weaving cloth, carpets, coverlets rugs and etc. She at
one time had a contract with Eugene Minnichan the famcus saddle
maker of Owingsville tc weave the linsey for the linings cf his
well known high priced saddles sold in nearly every state and
some shipped te other ccuntries. It was fine checked of dark
-ed, dark blue, and black. I was there once when she had a piece
in the locrni. She made plenty of fine quilts tcc. Her children
wzre well supplied, she was a careful buyer. Evervthing nust be
~f the hest, warrented, fast color, nothing "shoddy” as she
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Her son Tom married Alice Barnes, aunt of Ed Barnes, they had
four children. Addie who married Emmett Parks and 3 little hoys
younger. Tom died whén his children were small. His wife died
two years later. They were raised by an old maid, Aunt "Sis”
Barnes and her brother James Barnes, George and Jess Warren died
with 10 days of each other .of typhoid fever. George had been
married about two years, Jess about 21 vears of age as not
married. John was married four tines, first to Julia Darrell,
who dying left a little girl Effie, 11 vears old. Then Anna
Kendig who left four childdren, Gertrude, George, Elsie and on#
more, then he married a Miss Day, who died and left two children.
Her sister raised those two children but had none of he:r own. I
believe she is still living. Ann and Rate married Horsemnan
brothers, Mollie married Bob Bristow, Caroline married Jasper
Lacey, Lide and Emma the Flood brothers, Miranda married Hugh
Lowry,

George narried Rena Markwell, they had no children. Charlie
married Alta Rash, both dead but their daughter Maude 1is living.

Aunt Marv's old home still stands by the rovadside but sc made
cver you weuld hardly know it, but it was always a good lcoking
place.

xow the family said of Aunt Mary she had never slept in any bed
but a trundle bed, nor eaten only at the second table until sh#
nsrried. George Barber was married when guite young, died scoon
after his wife, I have been tcld proved to be "nc goed”. T &
not know what ever became of her for ny grandmother did not sav
riuch abe .t her and Georg2 was already gone so there was ncthing
wueh to be said about them. I do not even know her name, and :
T ever heard it, I do not recall it. Uncle Dan Barber lived &t
wWyening several years after Lis marriage, his daughter Melissa
heod grown up and married d boy whose nane was Sarn Xelson and they
wer® with Uncle Dan and Aunt Kate to Illinois. I do not renerner
hate's maiden name but nmy mother was very fond c¢f Uncle Dan an
Aunt Kate, and I have heard conments anong the family about
Mellisa's beauty and alsc abaut her black curly hair which benan
£.; *urn gray when she was not over 16 and by the time she was 18
o1 20 it was half whit-. Y .w what cther children they had I :
~w. I do not remember hearing anything about then bhut
2v they might have had some Younuger cnes. '
Cn:le Dan was fine business man and prospered at everything -
- .

andortosk.,  Grandma Ulery thought there was nothing that Darn
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could not nake ccme out all right. I do not know which went

fivet tc Illinois, Uncle Dan ant fanily or Aunt Caroline Adars

and her family but I think ahout the same time. Now Unole Jo<

and Aunt Carcline only had the two little zarls Jennie and Moy

and possibly Tom was the babyv when they left. Uncle Dan was waach
o ¥

.1 for he was anong the older ones of the family whils Auns
sline was either the y»sungest or next to the youngest. Th=
of her family were burrn “n Illinois. They were of cours:,
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Jennie, Mary and JTcon, she took with her and Maude probably named
for old Aunt "Moddy" .Barber who married a Mr. Burnette. Rate, I
guess, naned for my grandmcther Ulery who married a Mr. Willis.
Then EQ and Lida who I believe were twins. The twins were pretty
unusual in the Barber family. Lida was of course Eliza for Aunt
Caroline's sister.- She married Mr. Frick, of course, we never
knew or heard much frém this Uncle Dan and Aunt Carcline
families. They were out there and rather associated with each
other and folks did not travel about like they do now cr we might
have been better acquainted with them. Aunt Carclline and
daugzhters Jennie Alsbury and Mary Anderson made a trip back here
several years ago. Aunt Caroline then being about 81 years old
and looking much like Grandma Ulery who had already then passed
away and so had Aunt Mary Warren of course the older brothers and
sisters were all gcne long before that.

Now we had better talk about Eliza Barber as she has never yet
been mentioned. She was much older than my grandmcther as she
Lbelonged to the older ones of these dozen children., She first
narried Jehn Hicks who after a few vears died leaving her with
twe small girls, Margaret and Mary and a baby boy Tommie about
*wo ovears cld I do not know just what she nmight have .done cor
whzt she iugendpd to do but the whole family insisted that she
take her children and gc back honme for at that time <he was badly
needed tHere. While she had been away one or two ¢f the other
girls and married and left home leaving guite a varcancy and they
werz sadly in need ¢f a houseleeper for great grandnmother was

almost c:‘pﬁled from rheunstism in hands and arns and hesides she
had @ hzd skin disease tetrer, I heisve theyv called it, on her
Rarde znd arms which was very nuch aggravared by conrog un
contact with water. She &lwcys wore glw\us and aveided getting
her hande wet. Sc¢ Eliza tock her childr ard went hack hore
wh2zre she was installed as chief cook dnd h'::ﬁ ceeper whirch
pesxtion she filled for eight long years during thnt tinme in fact
akout the second vear of her stay little Tommy died. Then with
her twe girls she staved on until at the end of eicht vears she
rarriz=d aga'n this time to Abe Denton whose wife Betty Parber
Dentan, double ceouszin of Elize and mother of Jane Jashison had
d:ed eome vears before but her marriage to Denton did not last
leng. BHe lived about a vear and Tliza again a widow cane back
hore, I 322 not krnow hew long she staved but sone tire after
Denton's death probably a year or twe or pm‘Hap% l'xﬂw‘. Sh=
narrisd Charlie Jones, & widoweyr with several ‘“1 but I
believe all were married but Ann whoe was about «f her
girls hut net in thelr class as to beauty, tali, straight-
blonds Lair., She could not cont ~re with their le¢ and
sparkling beauty, but Ann without theilr dash and @ v nade far
the best marr;age for Ike Willicrme was a fine man, raised a nice
anily and provided well for ther and Ann had a pratity easy life.

Aunt Eliza used to visit there for weeks when she was old and
always received a warn welcore from Ann and IKky as she called

therm thouglh I d¢ net think she was any tao goeod to Ann as a
stepmether G alwavs drew o oompar.sone oo Jooks and euo. betwesen
A oand M v oty Aaugl e wh e e (0 s T eee Fe T Tows an



charming as they were. Aunt Eliza had two of Jane's children, a
beautiful little girl, Nancy, but always called Nannie, who
married a Daugherty and the famous Elijah well known in every
Barber home no nmatter how remote. One morning when Jim Anderson
and Etna lived down here abcut where Milt Carter lives, Ambrose
Ulery went in.while they were all down in the kitchen eating
breakfast, Charlie theéir little son was still asleep in a bed 1in
the room Annie sat down by the heater for it was a cold morning.
A man came in from the kitchen she did not know walking over tc
the bed and gave Charlie a little shake and said, "Elijah Elijah
what is the matter with you? Don't you feel like getting up this
morning?" Then Annie knew it must be some of the Barber kin or
he would not be talking like that for Elijah was quoted by ‘
kinsfolk near and far. This man was Clay Barber, sone of Uncle
Jess Barber of West Liberty, he and Annie were own cousins but
they had never met before but reference to Elijah Jones
introduced them of course Clay was a relative of Etna Anderscn
to:, and on his way from Mt. Sterling stopped off for the night.
I wsuld not knew where to begin to tell all of these stcries of
Fl:jak and his worthless life. Spciled by his doting mother
until he was not fit for anvything. He married a nice girl Lidsa
Nixon of Owingsville but I could never see how he managed to do
it. She came down there tc Aunt Eliza's c¢ld big home on the bank
of the Licking River. It stocd on this side in Bath Co. while
the home of Capt. Gecrge Barber was opposite over cn the Flering
Cz., side. I think Jack Rice in later years bought the cld hone
and that is where he and Venia reared their family. I spent the
night once there when Aunt Eliza was a widow and lived there with
Lita as she always called him and Lide. Grandna Ulery, mamna, San
and I had spent the day over &t Capt. Barbers to see Hays wiha was
then about five years cld. We cane back arrese the river and
spent the night, crossed in a heat, Sam, a little chap,
ineisting we crossed in a horse trough. Lide then had one baby,
Ar+hur, I think his name was. She had about four boys 1n a row.
They then after the death of Aunt Eliza went to Illinois. Lide
and chiliren, she had some girls then. All worked hard and scon
were getting along well so Mrs. Staton said, bat Lija finally
lef: the fanily and came back to KY, but nct here, down near
Carlisle with some people he knew or whe were hie relatives and
died there but he had left them when Viola visited Archie years
ag: at Hoopston. If he ever made any money at all, it was hy
garmbling. I think he could de that. But for all his short
crrings Aunt Elize would, if she could, blsme it on his wife. On
one of her visits up here she had with her a fine hlack silx
shaw! shimmering and lovely as it could be with heavy knotted
fringe at least six inches wide. It had once been white but
after being a widow sc¢ many times she had sent it scme time or
otter to Cincinnati and had it dved. That one tine she had 1t
with her is the only time I ever saw it. She had a ccat on this
trip and did not need it and Grandma asked her why she brought

it. well, Lide was careless about things and might let sonething

hagpen to it. Mice night ruin it and as she was going to bLe gnne

cevaral weeks she Lrought 1t along. I do woender whet ever went o f
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know on what termé she and Lija held that old home, certainly
they never hurt it anV. May have rented il cut sometimes and had
a little tended but never wore it out. Lija I guess had the sane
interest in it. The other Jones children and probably Aunt Liza
held her third as long as she lived then it was sold at her
death. She had some kind of bad spells after she married Charlie
Jones, but never before that. One Sunday a few months after her
marriage while the rest of the family had gone to church and she
was alone a married stepson came in and having some conmplaint
against her gave her some abusive language and badly upset her.
Wwhen Uncle Charlie got home she was ready to collapse and that
night she had this first ccnvulsion. They would come on her at
most anvtime and she had them as long as she lived. Sometines
she would go for weeks or perhaps a few months, but they always
carme back and after she would recover she would be hazy and go
off tc sleep and maybe would sleep hours. She rarely mentioned
ther only as "my old sick spells.” Her daughter, Maggie Hicks
married Lee Adams. When her first and only child, Johnny, named
for her father John Hicks was only a few months old, Adams in a
drunken election brawl at Wyveming in which a man was killed and
in the investigation, which followed, Adams found himself
:mp:licated and entangled as aiding and a betting to the tune cf
getting a prison sentence of two or three yeaars. This girl felt
cenpletely disgraced, vewed she would never live with him again.
Just awhile after Lee Adanms left, her own cousin, Will Hicks,

care in on a visit from Kansas where his family lived. He
affared to parry her and take the boy and rear hin as his own, s
+hat is what happened. Johnny Hicks ae he was nalle’ nade & fine
ran.  They never had any children. Johnny was the only one, he
a? red his father whe was devoted to him. Will Hicks wee @ well-

and Mag had everything in life which was a very happy
rv was well educated, married a fine girl, raised a
wWill Hicks, I believe, died scrietine before Mag
John Hicks died since Aunt Caroline made her visi
arnd Jennie Alsbury cut out of *the paper his death and wha
fire prospercus nan he wss, twoe Lrilliant scne in New York;
ie" man cne was, “he cther publisher of sore famcus paper.
& -
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men beth with ne Les Adams abont the The Barhker, I guess
have besn upernost, and the geod inyg of his fine
stepfathr Will Hicks made Johnny a fine gocd man whe knew what tso
de with his own children. I think Lee Adans was a relative of
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tncle Joe Adams, Aunt Carsline's husband, but men whe drink are
likely to get into trouble and Le= Adans was a drunkard and
wloisky was scld right in Wyening. at that tine.

Afrer the Civil War was over ny Grandfather Ulery and fanily left
wycming. Grandma's falks were gone from there. She had no
interest in staying. They had a very nice hone which they had
huilt. They sold it when they moved away. Nice twe story hcuse.
T caw it when I visited down there. Lee Rice and his nother
lived there. He was the well~-known aucticneer.

Wl emover Aunt Eliza Jones oame, she node o lung visit Sov she vad
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buggy and brought!her to his home. He was, I believe, her
favorite nephew, :and 'she especially like his wife, Bettie, then
her three sisters: Aunt Mary Warren, Aunt Melissa Jackson, and
my grandmother Ulery. She always spent a week or two at John
Jackson's. She was of course a sister to his mother then also
she was a double cousin of .Jane's mother, Betty Barber Denton,
also she had been Jane's stepmother for a year or two being
married to her father Abe Denton, so it was sometimes two or
three months before Aunt Eliza returned home. She always came in
the fall or late summer, but wanted to get back before it got
real cold.

Aunt Eliza's other dauthter, Mary Hicks married John Gregory, who
died after a few vears leaving her with several children, four or
five perhaps, and one little boy who was badly burned. He never
fully recovered and was a care I guess as long as he lived. He
could walk I believe in a slow halting way but he received deep
burrs on his chest and stomach which left him badly bent over and
ruired his looks. He lived for years. She married again after a
few years. Some cld widower Bradly I believe his name. She had
ne Bradley children. He did not live but a few vears ané to the
fariily she was always known as Mary Gregory. Her suster Mag and
the Joe Adams fanily out west kept in touch with her and Mag
visited her not leng before Aunt Carocline Adams was here and Mag
repcrted her getting along well, a handsome white haired woman.,
busy as could be, running her dress shop and store in some town
in EY not far off I believe it was Georgetown. Despite two poor
marriages she still carried on. When Grandpa Ulery mcoved from
Wyoning, they did not go so far but moved on a farm and into the
hore of an old Aunt of his, Barbara Wright. I do nct knew how
leng they lived with her, but perhaps it was some vears, then
moved near where the father of Press Jones lived over bevand
Owingsville, then finally drifter into this neighberhecod hat ny
nether was grown when they came here. After ny meother's marriage
they bought the little home down here which was included in
Xellies part of Sanm's estate, it being bought by Sar fron then
when they guit housekeeping and noved in with Amnie.

Grandma Ulery did not have many children like scne cf the <thers.
Margaret was the oldest, Mary next but died when only a nonth or
twe old. Then Uncle Torm, named for her father c¢f course, then
Aun®t Minerva named for some special friend, Minerva Snelling,
then Amnbrese Seatorn named I guess for old Ambrose Wright, the
Seaton for Seaton Goodpaster, Aunt Anerica's sezsnd husband. My
mether, Delilah, should have keen mentioned befcre ncle Tom for
«t = was older than he and was nared for the grandmocther Tlery.
Grandpa's mother, Margaret or Maggle as they always called her
died while they still lived at Wyoming. She was 17 years old.
Delilah was born October 6, 1853, and died August 24, 1944, only
lacked a menth or two of being 91 years old, a long life.

When 3Aunt Minerva died she was about 19 or 20, been married a
vear, and died leaving a baby 12 days old. She had named hin
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that. Grandma regretted to the day of her death that she did not
keep that baby. Her son-in-law she said did not seem
particularly anxious for him, but some way after losing her
daughter she seemed not to want him and to- turn Landers loose
with no responsibility at all was more than she would do, but she
always said if she could have known the way he was to be brought
up, spoiled until he hardly knew what he wanted, by the family
and old Jeanette who waited on him and ran after him until he got
ashamed and made her "lay off." He never went to school to
amount to anything, he did not want to and that was that. He sat
around with the men, learned to play cards, and turned out to be
a professional gambler which worried Grandma as long as she
lived. '

Havs inheried a lot of land for old Capt. Barber owned a thousand
acres of land. Had this grandson to have equal share with his own
sorn's and before Hays was grown, Landers died so that gave him
his Daddy's share. Then Aunt Jeannette who also had a share left
hir hers. She was not Capt. Barbers daughter but step-daughter
but she shared in his estate with his own children. He left it
that way for she had almost raised her half brothers and sisters,
and oh how she had looked after Hays. No one coculd have given
hin closer or better attention.

My Grandfather Ulery was born November 11, 1822 and died
September 3, 1906, nearly 84 years old. Grandma Ulery born May
18, 1829, died January 16, 1914, age 84, 7 menths, and 28 days.
Oh how I loved that dear old grandmother, been with her almost ny
whole life. No wonder I knew so much about her family. I would
have been a dull pupil if I had not for I had a lesson on then
everyday. Now these six sisters of her father, she used to nane
over for me frequently. I never bothered to know anything about
who they rnarried or what became of them. It seened that she knew
very little they probably had about faded out of the picture
befcre her time and perhaps better remembered by the oclder ones
of the children. So we perhaps had better look at the Reids
awhile.

The Reids, she said, came from the South Fork of the Potomac
River in Maryland and settled near Clintonville in Bourben Co. 1in
the early days. George Reid, her grandfather, married Margaret
Alkyre and their children were; John, Jesse, Dan, Henry, Maude,
Margaret, Katie, Betsy, Sallie, Mary Aann, and Susan, eleven
children. Margaret married Thomas Barber, Maude married his
brother John Barber. Katie late in life married a Mr. Dawson,
Betsy married an Arrasmith, Sallie a Mr. Starr, Mary Ann married
a Tillett, Susan never was nmarried. These Reid wonen were noted
for their industry, weaving cloth of all kinds; they were never
idle.

Aunt Mary Warren nmust have had a good dose of their industry.

1

had & sister down there who married a Renick.

ye Reid
3 sver knew her nane. She said her nother always called
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her "Aunt Renick".her daughter Julia Ann used to visit in the
Barber home accompanied by a brother Abram not Abraham for Abram
was strictly a Renick name and has been passed down thru several
generations. They were the early breeders of short horn cattle
in Bourbon Co., and some of them very wealthy. ©Not too long ago
an Abram Renick III died down there. I read of his death and
what he meant to cattle business.

My grandma Ulery was named for her Aunt Katy Dawson as was also a
daughter, Kitty Barber of John and Maude. These people named all
their children for kinsfolk. No outside name rarely came into
their families. Grandma Ulery named her oldest child Margaret
for her mother, then the next one Mary for her sister Mary
Warren. My mother Delilah for Grandpa's mother, she being the
next but was always considered the oldest of the family as
Margaret and the next baby had both died. Uncle Tom came next
then Aunt Minerva Ambrose was the baby. My mother was 13 years
old when Ammie was born. He was only a little over seven years
older than I. My grandmother used to tell me a favcrite story
that her fathr told his children and grandchildren and one he
never got tired of repeating. Years and years ago much of the
country was still in woods, not too much cleared land, much of
their stock ran but on the range from early Spring till late in
the Autumn, picking up their living as best they could but when
it really got cold they were brought in and fed thru winter. One
warn day in early Spring, Tom Barber and his brother John were
playing in the woods near their home when they noticed an old
sheep which evidently had got separated from its flock and was
lost. Now this sheep had a nice little bell hanging about its
neck and these boys at once took a notion they would like to have
it if they could manage to get it off. So they followed the
sheep around and around and finally got it hemmed in among scme
brush and caught it, no trcuble for them to hold 1it, strong
little chaps about six and eight years old but the strap around
the Sheep's neck was hard for them to unfasten but at last it
cane loose and the bell was in their hands. Then they faced
ancther problem what to tell when they went in with this bell.
They could think of nothing so concluded to hide the bell in the
leaves until they could think of some reason for having it so
they went home to dinner. After dinner they went again to play
in the leaves and took their little sister Betsey with them. She
was delighted tramping about in the rustling leaves but with
perfect understanding these boys each took her by the hand and
led her around and back and forth in the neighborhood of the bell
until at last her foot struct it, and oh what had Betsey fcund?

A tinkling little bell and they sped to the house as fast as they
could to show it. Their father took it, looked it over
carefully, and sat it on the mantle saying, "This is indeed a
fine little bell and some one may be inquiring feor it sometime
before long so we will let it stay on the mantel and see if any
one makes any ingquiries about it." A few mornings later a man
came in to chat awhile and as he got up to start home, Mr. Barber
arcse also and happened tc see the bell on the mantel, picking it
up he held it out for the nan to see saying, "Lock what a fine
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little bell the children found out in the woods while playing in
the leaves the other day." The man took it looking it over
carefully, said, "This is my bell. My old mare lost it from her
neck a few days ago,” and he slipped it into his coat pocket and
left leaving two boys with nothing to say, only stare after him
taking away their bell when both knew he was a liar but could
they say so and have to tell they had stolen the bell from the
neck of an old sheep which they caught and forcibly removed it.
They knew what would happen then and quite young they really
learned a good lesson in honesty and truthfulness, also that
deceit never pays. Grandma always said this was her father's
favorite story to tell his children and grandchildren about
"Betsey and the bell." Now Betsey was his sister who years later
married a Mr. Butler. She must have died or moved away for 1
never heard of any Butler relatives. Now when my grandmother
Ulery was a small girl her home was what was afterward called the
"Bige Wilson place” and lies across the "Highway" from the old
brik home of the old Ewings. None of them own or live at it now
all dead long ago. Also old grandfather lived in Owingsville
several yeaars before finally moving to Wyoming which in those
days was quite a thriving little place, but finally people got
tired of being run out of their homes by the flooding of the town
by Slate Creek and Licking River and began to locate elsewhere
until it was almost deserted, not one of the Barber family
remained, though at one time they were most all living there.
0ld great grandfather Barber as long as he lived boasted of his
fine big family. He said of his dozen children and his many
grand children that there had never been a deformed child, an
idict, nor an indecent woman among them and none of his sons or
grandsons had ever been in jail or arrested for any offense at
any time. He said the fact that there were so many of them was
what made it so remarkable.

This I guess is about all I know about "The Barber Clan" which
was a clan alright for many many years, but the many years have
scattered them. All the older ones are dead years ago, their
decendents hardly claim kinship anymore and indeed it has about
run out and it is now only a very distant relationship and can
hardly be called "The Barber family" anymcre.

I an now 81 years old. C.M.
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